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A Note
This document includes citations relied upon for Planning Scheme Amendment C19. This 
amendment included 56 individual places in to the Heritage Overlay of the Glen Eira Planning 
Scheme. 

Changes to some citations or Statements of Significance have been made through subsequent 
amendments and a limited number of places have subsequently been listed on the Victorian 
Heritage Register.
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GLEN EIRA HERITAGE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

58 Balaclava Road, St. Kilda East 
"Wyndham" (house, 1914) 

Photo: April 1998 

Existing Designations: 
Victorian Heritage Register: nil 
National Estate Register: nil 
National Trust Register: nil 

Description: An exceptionally picturesque late Federation period villa with 
symmetrical fayade in the Arts and Crafts manner consisting of pavilions with window 
bays, hoods and half timbered gable ends flanking a recessed porch with lattice screen 
employing the circle and keyhole motifs in the manner of the day. A ventilated dormer 
with gablet is centrally located in the gable roof to emphasise the symmetrical 
arrangement. 

Condition: Sound 
Integrity: High, brickwork overpainted. 

History: The land on either side of Orrong Road between Inkerman and 
Balaclava Roads was purchased from the Crown by William Lyall, prominent 
pastoralist, grazier, public identity and first owner of the property "Frogmore". 

The land comprising section 181A and B became the estate known as "Chaddesley", 
which in 1909 was owned/administered by the National Trustees Coy. In 1912, it was 
listed in the Rate Books as the executors of the estate of J.B.Perrins. Elizabeth Perrins, 
a widow, lived there. 

HO87
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GLEN EIRA HERITAGE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

60 Balaclava Road, St. Kilda East 
house, 1914) 

• C.')j 

Photo: April 1998 

Existing Designations: 
Victorian Heritage Register: nil 

National Estate Register: niJ 
National Trust Register: nil 

Description: A representative Federation period villa with black tuckpointed red body 
bricks, stuccoed dressings, curiously resolved verandah treatment and distinguishing 
foliated cast cement panels to the front gable end and fac;ade. 

Condition: 
Integrity: 

Sound 
High 

History: When the "Chaddesley Estate" subdivision was released for sale 
c.1912, James Andrews, a manager from Camberwell, purchased lot 6 in Balaclava
Road, north side between Chaddesley Street and Orrong Road. The land measured
about 66 by 160 feet and had an NA V of 14 pounds. In 1914, Andrews built a brick
house which he named "Bangor" for his residence. The house had eight rooms and an
NA V of 80 pounds. Andrews lived at "Bangor" until 1920 when he sold it to Mrs Clara
Mordecai(?). Sydney Sinclair, a shipping clerk, lived there.

References: Caulfield City Rate Books: 1909-10, 1912-15, 1919-20. 
MMBW litho plan no.47, dated 1935 (?). 
Parish Plan Prahran, 1882. 
Citation for No.58 Balaclava Road re early land ownership. 

HO88
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GLEN EIRA HERITAGE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

80 Balaclava Road, Caulfield North 
" 

Photo: April 1998 

Existing Designations: 
Victorian Heritage Register: nil 
National Estate Register: nil 
National Trust Register: nil 

Description: A substantial and picturesque Federation period villa with attic storey 
and corner posted verandah emphasised by an unusual hipped roof treatment adjacent to 
the diagonal axis. The verandah has plain curved spandrels and beams with fretted 
battened balustrade whilst leadlit casement windows are arranged in angled bays and in 
narrow casements either side of a tall chimney stack in the Arts and Crafts manner. The 
attic floor has balconettes, the east facing dormer having possibly been built in. The 
front door is round arched and given added emphasis by a gablet in the verandah. 

Condition: 
Integrity: 

Sound 
High 

History: Numerous sections of land were purchased by W.Lyall when 
Crown land was sold in the Balaclava/Orrong Road area. Among them was section 
187B comprising four acres, which subsequently became part of RH.Billing's estate, 
later known as "Labassa". 

From around the time of the Great War, areas of land associated with "Labassa" were 
subdivided and sold, the lots fronting Balaclava Road being among the first to go. 

HO89
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GLEN EIRA HERITAGE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

330-338 Balaclava Road, Caulfield North
Houses and shops

: :·•-·· ;.;., ,•,;: . _, , 

- •

Photo: April 1998 

Existing Designations: 
Victorian Heritage Register: nil 
National Estate Register: nil 
National Trust Register: nil 

Description: This complex consists of two identical former shops: "Tarnaki House" at 
no.330 and "Dunedin House" at no. 338 at either end of a short terraced row of two 
houses: nos. 332 and 334. The shops retain their pilastered fronts and balustraded 
pedimented parapets but the shop windows have been removed as a part of their 
conversion to residential use. The residence at no. 330 has a timber posted verandah, 
possibly reconstructed, and both buildings have been overpainted. The houses at nos. 

332-334 are in polychrome brick with balustraded and pedimented parapets. The
verandahs to no. 332 has been built in and to no. 334 altered.

Condition: Sound 
Integrity: Fair 

History: The land bounded by Inkerman, Hawthorn, Balaclava and 
Kambrook Roads was commonly known as ''Paddy's Swamp" and was reserved for 
public use as a watering place for stock on the way to the markets in the mid nineteenth 
century. It was later named Caulfield Park. The railway line to Oakleigh cut through 
the north east corner of Paddy's Swamp in 1878-9. Normanby Road and Park Crescent 
were formed when Crown land was released for sale. The land between these two roads 
and Kambrook Road comprised section 10. 

HO90
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GLEN EIRA HERITAGE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

345 Balaclava Road 26 Kambrook Road Caulfield North 

Photo: April, 1998 

Existing Designations: 
Heritage Council Register: nil 
National Estate Register: nil 
National Trust Register: nil 

Description: A prominently situated two-storeyed complex of late Victorian buildings 
consisting of "Wybar's Buildings" occupying the Balaclava Road/ Kambrook Road 
corner and the "Caulfield Bakery" facing Kambrook Road, separated by a driveway 
from a single storeyed shop. The main building has a corner splay and balustraded 
parapet with curved pediments, the words "Wybar's Buildings 1887" having been 
obliterated but "Caulfield Bakery 1887" with the characteristic wheatsheaf surviving in 

raised cement work. The walls are stuccoed and richly ornamented with bracketed 
cornices and keystones with masks extending to the Bakery. The main building is 
further distinguished by the Masonic symbol of the mason's dividers in the pediment 
whilst the upper level of the bakery is in overpainted brickwork. The single storeyed 
shop incorporates the bracketed cornice and consoles characteristic of the main 
buildings and is in other respects a utilitarian structure. 

Condition: Sound 
Integrity: The entire complex originally had posted verandahs with shop fronts, 
now replaced, at street level. Later shop fronts survive at the Bakery and the shop at 
no.26 Kambrook Road. 

HO91
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GLE EJRA HERITAGE MANAGEMEN 

19 Blanche Street, Elsternwick 
"Sprouston"(house, 1900) 

Photo: September, 2000 

Existing Designations: 
Heritage Council Register: nil 
National Estate Register: nil 
National Trust Register: nil 

ne-cri.ption: A richly ornamented late Victorian Boom Style asymmetrical villa in 
polychromatic brickwork with faceted wing and cast iron posted convex roofed 
verandah to the entire fayade and part south side. There are timber frieze rails and 
<lentils to the verandah and a decorative valance treatment to the fascias. Black body 
bricks are relieved by white and red banding and there is a hipped slate roof 

Condition: Sound. 
Integrity: Later sympathetic verandah floor, recent high front fence, rear additions 
and car port. 

History: At the Government land sales, J.M. Holloway purchased Crown portion 
247 on Glen Eira Road having an area of about 8.5 acres. Henry Joseph Langdon 
subsequently purchased 6 acres of this portion, which he subdivided. In the process 
Blanche Street was formed. The housing lots created were released for auction on 

HO92
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CAULFIELD CONSERVATION STUDY 

1 Bond Street 
House, "Grace Darling" 

Photo: August 1994 

Existing Registrations: 

Historic Buildings Register: 
National Estate Register : 
National Trust Register : 

Description: 

ANDREW WARD 
Architectural Historian 

A small single fronted late Victorian timber villa with ashlar boarding and timber 
posted verandah with cast iron lace frieze. Substantial timber stables are located at the 
rear accommodating 4 boxes and having access off a pitched right of way. A prominent 
jerkin head roof accommodates the loft and retains its distinguishing fretted barges and 

dormer with pulley for storing feed. Inside, the floor is brick paved and the boxes have 
full height sliding doors. A ladder provides access to the loft. 

HO93
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CAULFIELD CONSERVATION STUDY 

30 Booran Road 

House, "Andover" (1899), "Moidart" (1910), now "Lord Lodge" 

Photo: January, 1995 

HO94
VHD: H71









GLEN EIRA HERITAGE MA 

32 Booran Road, Caulfield South 
1899 

Photo: June 1999 

Existing Designations: 
Victorian Heritage Register: 
National Estate Register: 
National Trust Register: 

nil 
nil 
niJ 

D •SClf';iptiou: An imp .sing ingl .storeyed asymmetrica.J late Victorian 
talianate viUa with hipped late roof and aceted window bay to the projecting wing. 

There is a comer verandah, n w partly built in and rebuilt. Ornamentation includes 
vermicuJated qu ins and panel beneath the round arched window. to the bay. There are 
also imiJar pa.neJ beneath the coupl d columns to the verandah which upport a 
scalloped bressemer 

Condition: Sound 
Jnt · g1·ity:. Medium, verandah defaced and part built m. Spacious front 
garden with mature tr:ees. tables may survive at the rear. 

History: The last major subdivision of Crown Land took place along the north and 
south east boundaries of the "Caulfield Race Course Reserve". The land was advertised 
as "Suburban allotments" and was released for sale in February 1879. 

Lot 14 of Portion 8 backed onto the racecourse and was purchased by the Whittingham 
brothers. By 1891, horse trainer John Leek was owner of part lot 14. It had a frontage 
of 100 feet and was adjacent to Leek's house and land at no.30 Booran Road. 

HO95
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GLEN EIRA HERITAGE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

114-116 Booran Road, Glen Huntly
"St. Agnes" Anglican (former Church of England) Church and Reetory. \j tro_,,.ro. f> e-

Photo: September, 2000 

Existing Designations: 
Heritage Council Register: nil 
National Estate Register: nil 
National Trust Register: nil 

Description: A red brick Italian Romanesque church with apsidal, cruciform wings 
and centrally located bell tower at the front with flanking entrances at the base. Coupled 
nave windows employ the Serlian motif and have cement dressings. The barges have 
fretted ornamentation and there is a Lombardic motif to the friezes also in cement. 
Emphasis is given to the bell tower by means of an apsidal end at the base, foundation 
stone and cartouche in freestone reading "St. Agnes", louvred openings and upper 
sections with a surmounting pyramidal roof with wrought iron cross. 

Inside, the porches either side of the fa9ade tower give access to the nave through the 
baptistry which has a vaulted plaster ceiling. The nave ceiling linings are varnished v­
jointed timber in faceted and diagonally opposed panels between the exposed curved 
lower chords of the trusses. The nave brickwork is red facework relived by the lead lit 
windows and there is a curved brick archway to the stuccoed and faceted walls of the 
sanctuary which has been re-organised but retains a ceramic (?}-fmage of the Last 
Supper above the table

._ 
The chandeliers in bronze (?) with opalescent lamp shades are 

presumed to be originaLThe floor of the nave is occupied by chairs that complement 
the character of the interior\ 

r 1 a_L,.fA,

OfVS 
gecti'le 
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GLEN EIRA HERITAGE MANAGEMENtf PLAN 

22 Brady Road, East Bentleigh I 
House 

Photo: 1999 

Existing Designations: 
Heritage Council Register: nil 
National Estate Register: nil 
National Trust Register: nil 

' I 

- Description: A representative single fronted late Victorian symmetrical timber villa
situated on elevated ground with a cast iron verandah having cabled columns and bell
cast roof, ashlar boards to the favade and a central doorway flanked by windows with
side lights. There are encaustic tiles to the verandah tloor and the hipped roof has
symmetrical bi-chromatic chimneys and slates with fish scale banding and a lozenge
motif

Condition: 
Integrity: 

Sound. 
High. 

History: The area bounded by Centre, South, Chesterville and Warrigal Roads 
consisted of 636 acres being C.A.58 which was granted to Hugh Glass at Crown land 
sales in the Parish of Moorabbin. Its sandy soils subsequently attracted market 
gardeners and later the Yarra Yarra Golf Club which established itself within its 
boundaries in 1927. 

HO97
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GLEN EIRA HERITAGE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

438 Centre Road, Bentleigh 
State Savin s Bank and dwellin 

Photo: January, 1998 

Existing Designations: 
Victorian Heritage Register: nil 
National Estate Register: niJ 
National Trust Register: nil 

Description: A monumental and prominently situated stuccoed former bank in the 
Egyptian Revival mode with a pilastrated fa9ade, upper level loggia and frieze with 
"The State Bank of Victoria" in stuccoed Roman letters. Prominent roundels and the 
form of the fa9ade suggest Egyptian architectural influence whilst ornamentation is 
generally simplified in the manner of the period. Steel framed lower level windows 
adopt superimposed Greek and St. Andrews Cross motifs. The fa9ade treatment returns 
along the Daley Street elevation for a single bay and there is a porch giving access to 

the former residential entrance. 
Condition: Sound 
Integrity: High 

History: A stage of the subdivision known as the "Golden Square Estate" 
was released for auction on 28 April 1923. It offered 25 business and 112 home sites in 
an area bounded by the "Melbourne and Mordialloc electric railway", Mitchell Street, 

Centre and Brewer's (sic.) Roads. 

In Centre Road on the south between Bendigo A venue and Daley Street, there were 14 
business sites. Lots 9 to 14 had already sold and "six new two storied shops" were in 

HO98
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GLEN EIRA HERITAGE MANAGEMENT PLAN 1999 

675 Centre Road East Bentleigh 
East Bentleigh Hall 
Former East Brighton Hall 

Existing Designations: 
Heritage Council Register: ni] 
National Estate Register: nil 
National Trust Register: nil 

Description: The building consists of an early red brick hall, now defaced, with a 
Moderne addition at the front incorporating the original porch and providing foyer and 
present storage accommodation. There is a more recent canopy to this addition facing 
Centre Road and there are various rear post war additions. The original brickwork has 
been laid in EngJish bond. The original ball is distinguished by its gabled roo� ide brick 
wall with windows now bricked up but re-taining the original doorways and ca t iron waJl 
and sub floor vent· characteristic of the late Victorian peri.od. The originaJ fa�ade 
parapeted gable end is vis'ble above the entry roof and it is po ible that the orig'nal roof 
structure to the earlier porch i in situ beneath. The Modem.e styled addition are in clinker 
brick and have been aJtered by the addition of the .recent canopy and removal of the flag 
pole. The fac;ad has a ge.neraUy symmetrical arrangement about a rai ed and tepped 
central section corresponding with the original porch. The left hand window has a 
horizontal concrete window hood in the style of the period. 

HO99
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GLEN EIRA HERITAGE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

372 Dandenong Road, Caulfield North 

Photo: April 1998 

Existing Designations: 
Victorian Heritage Register: 
National Estate Register: 
National Trust Register: 

nil 
nil 
nil 

Description: A late Victorian bi-chromatic brick Gothic Revival villa with black 
Hawthorn body bricks, oriented towards Orrong Road and having an asymmetrical 
form. The projecting wing facing west has a tri-partite window with round arches and 
lancet shaped drip moulds in the manner of the period. The surmounting gable end has 
a moulded coping with corbelled treatment in stucco extending down the corners to link 
with red brick banding. Other windows are flat arched with hood moulds and stucco 
work whilst the verandah occupies the south-west aspect and has distinctive cast iron 
lacework and spandrels. It gives access to the front door. 

Condition: 
Integrity: 

Sound 
High 

History: The land on the south side of Dandenong Road between Orrong 
and Norwood Roads was sold by the Crown in blocks of about three acres. The block 
on the south east corner of Dandenong and Orrong Roads, section 182A was purchased 
initially by J. Porter. It was subsequently owned by Robert Byrne. 

HO100
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CAULFIELD CONSERVATION STUDY 

Cnr Railway A venue and Dandenong Road 
Former Art and Applied Science Wing, 
Caulfield Technical School, now part of Monash University (Caulfield Campus) 

Photographs: March, 1995 

HO101

39



40



41



GLEN EIRA HERITAGE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

20 Denman Avenue Balaclava 

Existing Designations: 
Victorian Heritage Register: nil 
National Estate Register: nil 
National Trust Register: nil 

De ripti.on · An e traordinary red brick two stor yed Art and raft villa L 
shaped on pJan ? , with space formed by the two wings occupied by an angled wall and 
surmounting glazed baJcony and gablet in the 1erra corta tiled hipped roof. Prominent 
elements are the two chinu1ey w·th terracotta pot symmetrically located either ide of 
the front window and the two storeyed balancing window bays with shingled spandrel.s. 
The ymmetry f the -composition i accentuated by the location of th front door, th 
unbalanced horse hoe shaped window to th left acting a a foil to the rigorou 
ymmetry of the compo ition. 

Condition: Sound 
Integrity: High, tiled porch, later garage, bay windows possibly re-glazed and 
shingled, bricks re-tuckpointed. Later front fence. 

History: Denman A venue was formed c.1912 and the land round it subdivided for 
housing, most of the lots having frontages of about 66 feet. Lot 12 on the north side 
was owned by Francis Grey Smith, a solicitor, in 1913. 

Smith sold the vacant block to Joseph S. Weatherston, a Hansard reporter, in 1914. 
During that year Weatherston built a seven roomed brick house there for his residence 

HO102
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GLEN EIRA HERITAGE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

10 Elm Avenue, Elsternwick 
"Repton" (house, 1910) 

Photo: July 1997 

Existing Designations: 
Heritage Council Register: Nil 
National Estate Register: Nil 
National Trust Register: Nil 

Description: A substantial defaced late Victorian Gothic Revival influenced two 
storeyed villa with inter-war additions to the north facing fayade and west elevations. A 
central projecting bay with entry porch is richly detailed in the Gothic manner with 
hood mould, single point segmental arched lower level lead lit window, foliated 
spandrels and upper level windows with muffled glass sashes, half timbered gable end 
and king post decoration in the Queen Anne style. The walls have been roughcast but 
retain their quoins, Gothic influenced architraves and bracketed cornices. 

Condition: Sound 
Integrity: Medium, substantial alterations reversible. 

History: In 1886,the only property on the south side of Elm Avenue between Marmara 
Drive and the Brighton railway line, was described as a "brick house with eight rooms 
on Pt. Nepean Road, rated to John D. Partridge, an assayer. The NAV was 140 pounds". 

HO103
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GLEN EIRA HERITAGE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

21 Elm Avenue, Elsternwick 

"Walton" (house, 1900) 

Photo: July 1997 

Existing Designations: 
Heritage Council Register: Nil 
National Estate Register: Nil 
National Trust Register: Nil 

Descripdo11: ubstantial defaced late ictorian · lassical Revival two storeyed villa 
·vitb we l · acing fayade and hipped c.g.L lad roof. The fayade etains its stuccoed
porch ith urmounting pediment and ground floor l el flanking tuccoed window
bays .. he northernmost ba being defaced following construe i n of a aircase to a
balcony above the earlier porch during the 1920's. The face brick walls hav received a
later roughcast ftni h but retain their quoins and bracketed cornices.

Condition: Sound 
Integrity: Medium. Alterations have altered the appearance of the building but are 
reversible. 

History: The house on the north side of Elm Avenue, formerly known as ''Walton", 
originally formed part of an extensive estate owned by James Blackmore McQuie, an 
accountant and stockbroker. The land, which McQuie purchased on 7 February 1884, 
bounded Elm Avenue, Arthurs Seat (Nepean) Road, Glen Huntly and Shoobra Roads. 

HO104
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This number is blank upon approval of Amendment C19. 
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GLEN EIRA HERITAGE MANAGEMENT PLAN 2000 

Corner Glen Eira and Hawthorn Roads, Caulfield South 
Former City of Caulfield Municipal Hall and Offices (now City of Glen Eira) 

Photo: December, 1999 

Existing Designations: 
Heritage Council Register: nil 
National Estat� Register: nil 
National Trust Register: nil 

Description: An imposing and prominently situated Municipal complex, built over a 
period with the important eastern portion in the Classical Revival mode. There is a three 
staged clock tower with surmounting flagpole, stylistic elements including Corinthian 
Order pilasters at ground level, rusticated corners and round arched openings to the 
second stage and a pilastrated upper stage with pediment motif to the clocks, and 
surmounting pyramidal roof There are louvres to the upper stage belfry whilst the 
pilaster capitals have acanthus leaf enrichment consistent with the Inter-War period. 

The principal two storeyed block facing Hawthorn Road is trabeated, the lower 
Corinthian Order pilasters being half round and rectangular with Adamesque motifs and 
separated from the upper level Tuscan derived pilasters by a plain entablature. The 
single storeyed south-east wing is similar but separated from the main block by a later 
and somewhat simplified pilastrated section having a shallow pedimented parapet. 

The Glen Eira Road elevation is dominated by a Neo-Grecian portico with Corinthian 
Order columns, plain pediment and coffered ceiling. The main doors are bronze with 

HO106
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GLEN EIRA HERITAGE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

216-218 Glen Huntly Road
Shops

Photo: January, 1997 

ANDREW WARD 
Architectural Historian 

Description: An exceptionally imposing two storeyed Italianate pair of shops with 
residences above, distinguished by its upper level arcaded treatment with central blind 
opening, pedimented cornice and balustraded parapet with urns. 

Inside, elements of the shops are intact and include timber lined ceilings and doorways. 

Condition: Sound 

Integrity: Medium, verandahs removed, interwar shopfronts. 

History: A plan of the "Township ofElsternwick" of 1859 shows J. Clark as owner of 
lot 21 of section 22. The land bounded by Glen Huntly Road between Home Street 
and Brighton Road was vacant until 1887 by which time it had been sold and 

subdivided. In 1887 Robert Byrne owned a pair of brick shops with residences that he 
had built that year in Glen Huntly Road. Each had six rooms and an NAV of £60. 

Byrne, an auctioneer, occupied one of the shops. In the following year, the tenant of 
no. 216 was the English Scottish and Australian Chartered Bank, with Robert 

McKenzie, the manager, occupant of the residence. Robert Byers, a draper, occupied 

no. 218. In 1894, Byrne's trustees were listed as owners and the occupants were 
Edward Miller, a joiner and Peter Chadwick, a grocer. Ownership had passed to T. 
Lory of St. Kilda by 1900. James Smith, a printer, was tenant of no. 216 and the 

HO107
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GLEN EIRA HERITAGE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

220-22 Glen Huntly Road
Shop

Photo: January, 1997 

Existing Designations: 

Heritage Council Register: nil 

National Estate Register: 11i.l 

National Trust Register: nil 

ANDREW WARD 
Architectural Historian 

Description: A two storeyed Italianate pair of shops with residences above, the upper 
floor having fluted and coupled Corinthian Order pilasters with round arched windows, 
part defaced, balconettes, ironwork removed, and intact shop fronts, no. 222 retaining 
its dog tooth ornamentation to the sills. 

Condition: Mediun parapet in need of maintenance 
Integrity: ediu.m. verandah removed parape ornamentation part removed interior 
of shop at no.222 retains original lement including varnished fmber ceiling. 

History: Refer to 216-18 Glen Huntly Road for early history oflot 21, section 22. 

A stationer, Fanny Stewart, rented a shop in Glen Huntly Road from James Brimsmead 
in 1887. In 1888, she owned vacant land with a 34 foot frontage to Glen Huntly Road 
between this shop and Byrne's shops. The NAV of the land was £20. 
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GLEN EIRA HERITAGE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

224-226 Glen Huntly Road

Shops

Photo: January, 1997 

Existing Designations: 

Heritage Council Register: nil 

National Estate Register: nil 

National Trust Register: nil 

ANDREW WARD 
Architectural Historian 

Description: A substantially intact Italianate two storeyed shops and residences 
building distinguished by its opulent late Victorian stuccoed ornamentation with urns, 

curved pediment, swags, balustraded parapet, aedicules, modillions and cast iron 

balconettes. The shop front to no. 226 though altered, is substantially intact and has 

unusual dog tooth ornamentation to the window sills. 

Condition: Sound 

Integrity: Medium. Verandahs removed, interior of shops defaced, 

ironwork to balconettes part removed. 

History: Refer to 216-18 Glen Huntly Road for early history oflot 21, section 22. 

In 1887 a brick shop with dwelling was built at this site. James Brimsmead of St. 
Kilda was the owner and he leased the building to Fanny Stewart, a stationer. The 
NAV was £45. A second shop with dwelling was completed in 1889. It had seven 
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GLEN EIRA HERITAGE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

563-67 Glen Huntly Road, Elsternwick
Former St. John's Presbyterian Church, now the Elsternwick/Caulfield South Uniting
Church

Photo: December, 1998 

Existing Designations: 
Heritage Council Register: nil 
National Estate Register: nil 
National Trust Register: nil 

Description: An Arts and Crafts influenced Gothic Revival Church in red brick with 
cement dressings having the form of a Greek cross on plan with the angles occupied by 
splayed extensions of the floor area. The former porch, now glazed in, is given 
emphasis by means of castellated and faceted bays on either side of the entry. There is a 
steeply pitched slate roof with fleche at the crossing and a rose window to the fa9ade 

with flanking buttresses terminated by spheres with castellations re-iterating the motif at 
the entry and demonstrating Arts and Crafts principles. There are sympathetic additions 

at the rear and recent additions on the east side. 

Inside, the floor slopes to the table and pulpit and there is a varnished-v jointed dado 
and lined ceiling with exposed ornamented trusses, the upper sections above the ties 

being concealed from view. There is a hammer beam treatment at the lower 
intersections of the trusses which are supported on slender clustered columns in the 
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GLEN EIRA HERITAGE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

1027 Glen Huntly Road, Caulfield South 
"Braeside" (house, 1919) 

Existing Designations: 
Victorian Heritage Register: nil 

National Estate Register: nil 
National Trust Register: nil 

Description: A picturesque Post Federation villa with diagonal axis reinforced 
by a curved window bay and corner verandah terminated by projecting gable ended 
wings in the manner of the period. The multiple gabled roof is slate lined with terra 
cotta ridge cresting and there are tapered rough cast chimneys with flat caps and terra 
cotta pots in the Arts and Crafts mode. The projecting gable ends are half timbered and 
surmount curved bay windows. Emphasis is given to the entry by a prominent gable 

ended section of the verandah which is carried on pre-cast concrete fluted columns. The 
balustrade to the verandah has unusual cast cement decorative panels based on a bi­

furcating volute motif 

Condition: Sound 
Integrity_: High, presumed later dormer window 

History: The land on the north side of Glen Huntly Road between Bambra Road 

and the railway line was originally subdivided and sold in blocks of three to four acres 
c.1864. Portion 82 between Kambrook and Booran Roads, was purchased from the
Crown by F. Thompson. Thompson's portion was subsequently absorbed in the
property ''Heatherbrae", which in 1913, was owned by Margaret Clarke and had an area
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GLEN EIRA HERITAGE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Glen Huntly Road, Glen Huntly 
Glen Huntly Railway Station 

Photo: September, 2000 

Existing Designations: 
Heritage Council Register: nil 
National Estate Register: nil 
National Trust Register: nil 

Description: A complex of recently rebuilt buildings retaining the original asphalt 
paved platforms with bluestone copings and defaced brick upstand walls and including 
an early timber framed building on the downside platform. It is a standard nineteenth 
century portable structure with gable roof and former booking lobby at the north end 
erected as an extension of the portable itself This gable roofed structure is carried on 
timber beams with scalloped ends and retains two picket barrier gates. The main 
portable has beaded vertical linings to the walls and doors and the roadside windows 
have been permanently sheeted over. There are characteristic bolted structural 
connections and a presumed later extension at the south end, the platform wall having 
beaded vertical linings, the south wall facing the waiting shelter having bull nosed 
weatherboard linings and the roadside having rusticated weatherboard linings. There is a 
waiting shelter at the south end open to the platform with a recent bench seat and 
window. Passengers are protected by a recent sympathetic timber posted verandah. 

Condition: Sound. 
Integrity: High (portable station building only). 
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GLEN EIRA HERITAGE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

122 GrangeRoad, Glen Huntly 
Former Post Office 

Photo: July, 1999 

Existing Designations: 
Heritage Council Register: nil 
National Estate Register: ,iJ 
National Trust Register: nil 

Description: A late Post Federation period former post office having a domestic 
architectural character with corrugated iron clad gable roof, presumed ornamentation in 
the gable ends now sheeted over, projecting wings with shingled weatherboard linings 
and posted verandahs with ladder frame frieze and spandrels in the Arts and Crafts 
mode. 

Condition: Sound. 
Integrity: High, later reversible defacement along ridge line. 

History: Postal services at Glen Huntly were introduced from December, 1909. The 
local progress association agitated for improved services in 1916 and in 1920 the 
service was proposed for official status. In 1924 the post master received notice to quit 
the existing premises, presumably located at the City Hall where both the court room 
and post office were being relocated. Postal services were also transferred to Carnegie 
in that year, Murrumbeena being serviced from Carnegie. After various proposals were 
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GLEN EIRA HERITAGE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

3 Hood Crescent, Caulfield North 
Former house '11elenslea", now Shelford C.E.G.G.S. 

Photo: September, 2000. 

Existing Designations: 
Heritage Council Register: nil 
National Estate Register: nil 
National Trust Register: nil 

Description: A substantial two storeyed stuccoed Italianate villa with hipped slate roof 
and fa9ade sub-divided into two main parts, the former west facing side with tower 
having been demolished. The porch is the principal stylistic element having round 
arches and pedimented parapet with triglyphs, plain metopes and balustrading and an 
encaustic tiled floor. The walls are mostly in unpainted stucco, having been re-finished 
at different times and the ornamentation is sparce, being limited to the porch, eaves 
brackets and frieze mould. There is a timber posted verandah and single storeyed wing 
at the rear where a former principal room has a faceted north facing bay. 

Inside, the original staircase with stained glass window at the landing and ornamental 
plaster ceilings to the entrance hall are in situ. Elsewhere, the spaces are representative 
of their period. There is also a cellar (not inspected) and mature conifer and palm at the 
entry, the picket fence having been rebuilt to approximate its earlier appearance. 

Condition: 
Integrity: 

Medium, evidence of structural movement. 
Medium, part demolished. 
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GLEN EIRA HERITAGE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Hotham Street 

Road overbridge for Sandringham railway line 

Photo: January, 1997 

Existing Registrations: 

Heritage Council Register: 

National Estate Register: 

National Trust Register: 

nil 

nil 

nil 

Description: An early skewed road overbridge with bluestone abutments and iron 
strutted girders. The abutments have curved wing walls in axe finished and coursed 
bluestone with dressed copings having pyramidal terminations. Bellied angle iron 
struts to the north-south girders are decorative and structural elements. 

Condition: Sound 
Integrity: High, roadway kerbing also in bluestone. 

History: The railway from Windsor to North Brighton was opened by the St. Kilda 
and Brighton Railway Co. On 19-12-1859. By September, 1865 the company was 
bankrupt and was purchased by the Robson's Bay United Railway Co. which sold out 

to the government in July, 1878. 

On 25-11-1881 Sharp and Campbell entered into a contract with the Victorian 
Railways Department to construct a second line of railway from Windsor to 
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GLEN EIRA HERITAGE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

32-46 Huntley Road, Bentleigh
"Whitmuir Hall" (house, c.1860), "Killearnan" (I 877), "Bentleigh Club"(sporting
c_omplex, 1949)

' 

Photo: March 1998 

Existing Designations: 
Victorian Heritage Register: nil 
National Estate Register: nil 
National Trust Register: ni1 

Description: A pre um d late ictorian two storeyed talianate vii a now almost 
totally defaced and obscur d by work as ociated with the lub' . activitie . urv1vmg 
vi ible d meirt ·nclude the hipped ro f with central raised tuccoed pedim n flanked 
by urns and having, an acrot•erion to he apex. The fountain in the front lawn has a large 
asin with the lowe l age surmounted by fi ·h upportfog an um with garland and 

acanthu · leaves as the stem to the centre tier whi h is surmounted by a mermaid 
carrying he upper most tier. 

Condition: Sound 
Integrity: Low (building), High (fountain) 

History: It is unclear when the property known today as the "Bentleigh 
Club" was first established. RB.Foot's survey of the Brighton Estate shows the area 
straddling the Elster Creek east of Thomas Street reserved for Henry Dendy's farm, 
which was worked initially by some of "Dendy's immigrants". 
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GLEN EIRA HERITAGE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

113 Jasper Road, Bentleigh 

Our Lad of the Sacred Heart Convent 

Photo: January 1998 

Existing Designations: 
Heritage Council Register: nil 
National Estate Register: nil 
National Trust Register: nil 

Description: A picturesque convent with later rear additions demonstrating northern 
Italian Renaissance influence with a symmetrically arranged fayade having a central 
gabled porch with round arch and ornamental spandrels, flanking loggias with Tuscan 
columns, stilted arches and projecting wings. The southern wing has an apsidal end 
with machicolations and Cordovan tiled parapet and the northern wing has a similar 
tiled treatment with a statue of Mary and the Christ Child surmounting the main 
window. 

Inside, the chapel has a round arch to the sanctuary and exposed timber trusses in the 
Mission Style. 
Condition: Sound 
Integrity: High, with brick fence. 

History: The Lady of the Sacred Heart Convent was established as a place of 
residence for teaching nuns to service the Catholic schools in the area including the 
College alongside the convent. The architect was T.J. Power and the builder H. 
Sherlock Pty. Ltd, the foundation stone being laid on 11.11.1934. 
References: 
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GLEN EIRA HERITAGE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

118 Jasper Road, Bentleigh 

Photo: January 1998 

Existing Designations: 
Victorian Heritage Register: nil 
National Estate Register: nil 
National Trust Register: nil 

Description: An unusually imposing villa in the abfornian Bungal w Style with 
:shingled gable ends and louvred vents, tuc pointed brickwork, rough cast and fair face 
tucco with other ornamentation representative of the pei1fod, Windows are casement 

with leadlight work and there j a curved bay to he wing_ The buttressed p rch 
incorporate low segm ntal arches and the brick fenc s have complementar inverted 
buUnosed arch motifs. 

Condition: Sound 
Integrity: High, includes original garden layout with concrete path and brick edges. 

ID.story; The Marrion family and market gardening we-re ynonymous in 
the Moorabbin area, John M'arriott emigrated to ictoria and bought land in I 7 
between Brady and East Boundary Roads. He became a successful market gardener as 
did his sons who followed him. 

In 1925, William Marriott, one of John's descendants, owned a vacant block of land in 
Jasper Road on the east side between Higgins Road and London Street The land had a 
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GLEN EIRA HERITAGE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

122 Jasper Road, Bentleigh 
St. Paul's Church 

Photo: January 1998 
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GLEN EIRA HERITAGE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

16 Kambrook Road, Caulfield North 

Photo: April 1998 

Existing Designations: 
Victorian Heritage Register: nil 
National Estate Register: nil 
National Trust Register: nil 

Description: A small late Victorian Italianate villa distinguished by its parapeted 
window bays either side of a small verandah with encaustic tiled floor. The parapets are 
balustraded with console enrichment and glazed tiles, the stuccoed surfaces being 
unpainted. Ornamentation is in other respects undistinguished. 

Condition: Sound 
Integrity: Fair. Rough cast favade, inter war woodwork to verandah beam, tiled 
roof 

History: The railway line to Oakleigh opened in 1879. Simultaneously, 
pockets of land were released for sale for the first time. Among them was the triangular 
piece bounded by Balaclava, Kambrook and Normanby Roads, which was sold in 
February 1879 as "Suburban Allotments". Lot 2 fronting Balaclava Road was bought 
by A Meadway. It had an area of just over one acre. 
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196 Kambrook Road, Caulfield South 
''Glencoe" (house, 1888), "Woolamai" (1919) 

Existing Designations: 
Victorian Heritage Register: nil 
National Estate Register: nil 
National Trust Register: nil 

De.scrip ion: An imposing Jate Victorian poly-chrome brick a ymmetrical ma

wi ,h corner verandah and projecting wet fac,jog wing with faceted window bay to the 
fa.1rade. Body brick .. are red and relieved b cream and black brick anding and by 
cream bricks to the bracketed ,eaves. The fretted barge with king post treatment and 
imber posted verandah are unique in th Municipality nod unusual in the metropolitan 

area and dem nstrate an understated appreciation of the emerging ueen Anne mode. 

Condition: 
Integrity: 
arage. 

Sound 
High, later discrete additions and prominent but sympathetic 

History: The wedge of land formed by Kambrook, Neerim and Booran Roads was 
released by the Crown for sale in February 1879 as portion 8. This portion was 
subdivided into lots with areas of about 1 to 3 acres. Lot 7 on the north east corner of 
Kambrook and Neerim Roads was purchased by the Whittingham brothers. 

In 1887, John Mair, a boot manufacturer of Richmond and Walter Davis, a solicitor of 
Melbourne, jointly owned 10 acres including lot 7 in ''Neerim Booran Kambrook Rds". 
They disposed of 9.25 acres to L. Martin and presumably transferred the remainder on 
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GLEN EIRA HERITAGE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Koornang Road, Carnegie 
Carnegie Railway Station (former Rosstown) 

Photo: September, 2000 

Existing Designations: 
Heritage Council Register: nil 
National Estate Register: nil 
National Trust Register: nil 

Description: A group of structures consisting of the main timber station building, 
pedestrian subway, platforms, downside canopy and associated railway gardens. 

The main building has a cross ridged gable roof treatment with capped chimney and 
terra cotta pot and shingled gable ends. There is a hip roofed extension at the down end 
accommodating the closets and the walls have bull nosed weatherboard linings with 
cement sheet fills. There is a picturesque roadside entry porch with shingled gable end 
to the lobby which retains its booking window intact. Interior linings are painted v­
jointed timber with cement sheet, accommodation including the main office and two 
waiting rooms. There is a steel framed verandah with ripple iron valance (without 
manufacturer's plate). 

The downside building has been demolished but the original cantilevered awning is in 
situ. The asphalt paved platforms have brick walls and sawn bluestone copings and 
there is an asphalt paved pedestrian subway at the up end with brick retaining walls. 
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GLEN EIRA HERITAGE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

112 Kooyong Road, Caulfield North 
House: ''Rosemont" 

Photo: July, 1999 

Existing Designations: 
Heritage Council Register: nil 
National Estate Register: nil 
National Trust Register: nil 

Oescr·ption: A substantial formerly bi-chromatic brick two storeyed villa with sing! 
toreyed wings on the north side now on a battle axe Jot ut originally addressing the 
ooyong Road/BaJaclava Road comer_ The waU are over painted and the facade has a 

central buttressed porch with round archway and presumed later surmounting parap t. 
here are presumed later two storeyed erandah either side with pipe rail forming the 

first tloor balu trades and the upper level window have been altered to give access at 
this leveL The ing[e storeyed sections have been xtensivel.y altered and partly 
demolished and there is a hipped slate roof 

Condition: Sound. 
Integrity: Medium 

History: Godfrey Howitt, a doctor who acquired about 1. 5 acres during the 1840s 
in Spring Street, Melbourne, subsequently known as Howitt's Corner, was granted three 
Portions on Kooyong Road at the second sale of Crown land in the district. They were 
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20 Labassa Grove, Caulfield North 
House 

Photo: April 1998 

Existing Designations: 
Victorian Heritage Register: nil 
National Estate Register: nil 
National Trust Register: nil 

Description: A picturesque Inter-war bungalow in the Arts and Crafts manner situated 
in a garden setting and distinguished by its dominant gable treatment surmounting a 
central flat roofed portico with projecting pillars. The composition is enlivened by a 
central shingled balconette, strutted eaves, projecting wing and shingled sections above 
the windows, the walls being rough cast with brick dressings, now overpainted. 

There is an upper level attic floor whilst the roof is generally of cement tiles. 

Condition: 
Integrity: 

Sound 
High 

History: Land in the vicinity of Inkerman, Orrong and Balaclava Roads 
was purchased from the Crown by William Lyall. Section 192A with an area of four 
acres was part of this purchase. It subsequently formed part of the ''Labassa" estate and 
later, Labassa Grove. 

The northern end of Labassa Grove was subdivided in 1916. Lot 6, on the east side 
opposite Pearson Grove, passed through the hands of several owners in its first years -
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162 McKinnon Road, McKinnon 

"Y arallac" (house_ 1931, ______ ,.._.,....,.,..,......�...,,_......,.,._:"'!>'���s:--�----!lr.""J"" ....... -___,.,,.....

Photo: January 1998 

Existing Designations: 
Victorian Heritage Register: nil 

National Estate Register: nil 
National Trust Register: nil 

Description: An unusually picturesque Californian Bungalow with Arts and Crafts 
influence demonstrated by the use of clinker bricks, creosoted square edged 
weatherboards (overpainted), prominent centrally placed chimney with flanking small 
hooded windows, glazing bars and muffied glass. Other elements of the Style include 
the shingled gable ends and louvre vents, cement tiles and capped main chimney. 

Condition: 

Integrity: 

Sound 
High 

History: Although the Melbourne-Frankston railway line was completed 
in 1881, the settlement around McKinnon Road (formerly Manchester Road) and the 
railway line remained sparse at the tum of the century. The station master for the 
McKinnon station was the only resident listed on the south side of the road between the 
railway line and Jasper Road in 1910. 

In 1916, travelling east from the railway line, there was the railway gatehouse, then 7 
acres of land owned by Mark Hall, a boot maker. Six acres were leased to Alexander 
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32 Murray Street 
House 

CAULFIELD CONSERVATION STUDY 

Photo: September 1994 

Existing Registrations: 

Historic Buildings Register: Nil 
National Estate Register : Nil 

National Trust Register : Nil 

Description: 

Imposing single storeyed Italianate villa with principal elevations facing north and east 

and with cast iron lace corner verandah terminated at both ends by projecting wings 
with faceted bays. Distinctive window heads have curved corners with similar hood 
moulds and medieval ornamentation. The slated hipped roof has dog tooth barges and 
enriched frieze whilst portions of the stucco work have not been painted. The 

galvanised iron gutters have acroteria. 
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63 Murray Street, Caulfield South 
"Marston" (house, 1900) 

Photo: September, 2000 

Existing Designations: 
Heritage Council Register: nil 
National Estate Register: nil 
National Trust Register: nil 

Description: A richly decorated and unusual tuck pointed polychrome brick Boom 
Style single storeyed villa with projecting faceted wing and cast iron posted verandah 
with encaustic tiled floor to the front and sides. There is a rough cast half timbered 
gablet with cast iron ridge cresting to the verandah at the wing and decorative terra cotta 
panels to the frieze. Black body bricks are relieved with whites and reds in the front 
section only. There is a hipped slate roof with prominent stuccoed chimneys having 
terra cotta pots. 

Condition: 
Integrity: 

Sound. 
Hig�. 

History: Portion 1 on the north-east corner of Glen Huntly and Kooyong Roads 
was purchased by "Thomas Fulton and others" at the sale of Crown land c.1855. It 
covered an area of over 12 acres. By 1858, this portion was owned by J. Mansfield who 
resided in the house built there. The surrounding land was subsequently subdivided, the 
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GLEN EIRA HERITAGE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Mum�od WRtmbeeria- 44� NE.ett M_ fl,, 9
1 

M it tfJA11.U;-6JJJl--
Murrumbeena Railway Station 

Photo: September, 2000 

Existing Designations: 
Heritage Council Register: nil 
National Estate Register: nil 
National Trust Register: nil 

Description: A complex of timber buildings and structures on asphalt paved platforms 
with brick walls and sawn bluestone copings. Principal elements are the main (upside) 
station building, the secondary (downside) station building, the footbridge and mature 
trees with associated recent gardens. 

The bui.ldings are tandard Art and Crafts ormer 1ctorian Rail. .. ay Department 
designs. the ter:ra cotta tiled gabfe roof with capped chimney to th main bui1djng 
having shingled ends with fixed louvre and bracket . The walJ have bull nosed 
weatherboard with corner post and cement heet fills. There is a steel framed canopy 
with ripple iron valanoe manufactured by Forman and Co. engineers� Melbourne. The 
roadside ent.ry is given emphasis with a picturesque Art and Craft porch with arched 
bres emers. Inside, there are painted v-jointed linings and cement sheet fiJJs and 
ceiling . The booking window in the lobby is intact and there is an offic� t\v waiting 
ro ms and later cl ets at the we tend. 

The smaller downside building is of similar style and has a single longitudinal gable 
roof and cantilevered verandah. Accommodation includes the lobby, office, waiting 
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CAULFIELD CONSERVATION STUDY 

Springthorpe Reserve 

Gates 

Photographs: July, 1995 
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GLEN EIRA HERITAGE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

705 North Road, Carnegie 
"I dam ere" ( 194 3) 

Photo: June, 1999 

Existing Designations: 
Heritage Council Register: nil 
National Estate Register: nil 
National Trust Register: nil 

Description: An extraordinary and prominently situated ostentatious two 
storeyed Streamlined Modeme villa using Art Deco ornamentation and having a 
waterfall front with curved windows and porch. The variegated and banded cream 
bricks contrast with black manganese bricks to the striking Modeme chimneys, sills and 
front fence. There is a curved parapet to the ground floor with Moderne and Art Deco 
details and an unusual waterfall form treatment to the walls that confine the upper level 

balcony which has a curved sun hood to the windows and doors. Wrought iron screens, 
balustrade and front gate are also expressive of the Art Deco movement and there is a 
port hole window beside the entry in the manner of the period. 

Condition: Sound 
Integrity: High, the upper level may be recent. 

History: This area was known as East Elsternwick when Crown land was 
released for sale following Henry Foot's surveys of the early 1850s. T.L.H. Winter 
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GLEN EIRA HERITAGE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

8 Park Crescent, Caulfield North 
Stables 

Photo: April, 1998 

Existing Designations: 
Heritage Council Register: nil 
National Estate Register: nil 
National Trust Register: nil 

Description: A large gable roofed red brick and timber former stables situated at the 
rear of no. 8 Park Crescent and attached to timber framed quarters (?). There is a loft 
with doors and pulley beam for loading chaff whilst the stalls (not inspected) have 
segmental window openings, boarded up, facing the rear lane. 

Condition: Sound. 
Integrity: Medium, interior presumed modified. 

History: The area bounded by Inkerman, Hawthorn, Balaclava and Kambrook 
Roads was commonly known as "Paddy's Swamp" and was reserved as a public 
watering place for stock on route to market in the mid nineteenth century. When the 
railway line to Oakleigh cut through its north east corner in 1878-9, Normanby Road 
and Park Crescent were formed and the land between to Kambrook Road was released 
for sale as section 10. 
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GLEN EIRA HERITAGE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

13 Poath Road, Murrumbeena 
"Croft Head" (1926), "Balranald" (1990), "Croft head" (2000) 

Photo: July, 1999 

Existing Designations: 
Heritage Council Register: nil 
National Estate Register: nil 
National Trust Register: nil 

De.cription.: An impo ing polychrome brick late Victotian B om peri d two storeyed 
villa with Classical Revival and Queen Anne elements. · 1 e late gabled roof has 
recon tructed plain barges and he chim.neys hav . trapw rk in tb Qu n Anne manner. 
Th principal pening and arcaded treatment to the north wall verandah have 

gmental beads and the tuck pointed red body bricks ar relieved with whites and 
blacks and tiled panels and intaglio work to tie tone keystones. Thero are cabJed 
colonettes to the projecting wing window: and a tlat roofed engaged former ?) tower. 
surmounting th unprotected entry. The upp r l vel f the north side verandah has 
fluted cast iron column ith ca L iron pandrel to the baJustrade. 

Condition: 
Integrity: 

Sound. 
High. 

History: Crown allotments 95 and 96 each had an area of about 15.5 acres and 
were bought from the Crown by J.S.H .Bowman and P. O'Farrell respectively. The 
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GLEN EIRA HERITAGE MANAGEMENT PLAN 2000 

32 Queens A venue, Carnegie 
House 

Photo: January, 1999 

Existing Designations: 
Heritage Council Register: nil 
National Estate Register: nil 
National Trust Register: nil 

Description: An imposing late Victorian stuccoed Boom period villa having a two 
storeyed verandah with end walls in the manner of a terrace and unusual cast iron 
spandrels to the lower level demonstrating the final phase in the popularity of this 

material as a decorative architectural element. There is a prominent central portico with 
round arch, balustraded balconette above and unusual radiating foliations to the 
spandrels. There are curved pedimented terminations to the verandah end walls and the 
side walls are plain, without windows. 

Condition: Sound 
Integrity: High, front fence with late Victorian cast ironwork is sympathetic and 
contributory although appearing to have been relocated to this site at a recent date. 

History: The area between Racecourse Road, now Queens A venue, and Grange 
Road was offered for sale as early as 1864, J. McDonald acquiring Crown allotment 96 
in June of that year. It had an area of about 16 acres and along with neighbouring lots 
was bisected by the Caulfield/Frankston railway line in 1882, after which subdivision 
for housing took place. Sir Matthew Davies' Freehold Investment and Banking 
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GLEN EIRA HERITAGE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

12 Ripon Grove 
Former Third Church of Christ Scientist Melbourne 

Photo: January, 1997 

Existing Designations: 

Heritage Council Register: 

National Estate Register: 

National Trust Register: 

nil 
nil 
nil 

ANDREW WARD 
Architectural Historian 

Description: A picturesque and unusually large ,ormer Third hurch of, hri t 
Scientist (Melbourne) building in the American We Coast Italian Romanesque 
Reviva] Style with c mer campanile and balancing gable ended facade element 
surmounting a dominant relieving arch. treatment embracing tri�partite windows and 
entry. Tb remainder of the building is g nerall cruciform on plan and is distingui bed 
b hs gable end grouped window_ with stuccoed enrichment lead light work and 
Roman sque arch 

Condition: Sound 
Integrity: High, interior not inspected. 

History: The Christian Science movement was founded in Boston, USA, in 1879 In 
the twenty years prior to 1930 Christian Science churches increased from 1,213 to 
2,400 whilst membership thereafter levelled off and commenced to decline after the 
Second World War. The Third Church of Christ Scientist (Melbourne) was erected 
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GLEN EIRA HERITAGE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

40 Snowdon Avenue, Caulfield South 
House 

Photo: November 1998 

Existing Designations: 
Victorian Heritage Register: nil 
National Estate Register: niJ 
National Trust Register: nil 

2000 

Description: A prominant and picturesque Arts and Crafts Bungalow adopting the 
characteristic cross-ridged gable form with attic floor. The fayade is characterised by a 
picturesque balance between the elements consisting of a tall and dominant chimney, 
recessed porch, pressed metal clad gable end to simulate shingles and curved balconette 
(flower box?), small lead lit windows depicting marine scenes and rough cast walls with 
red brick enrichment. There is a dominant terra cotta tiled roof 

Condition: Sound 
Integrity: Higli includes crimped wire fence and mature palm tree in front garden. 

History: The area surrounding 40 Snowdon A venue was originally part of portion 
45 bought at the Crown land sales in the 1850s by T. Fulton and others. It was one of 
many such holdings Thomas Fulton had in partnership with Frederick Sargood and 
other entrepreneurs. In 1857-58, the "owner or his agent" of portion 45 was James 
Houston and the occupiers were Messrs Hart. The Hart family bought the land c.1858 
and built a house there. A later house erected there by John Hart became known as 
"Glenholme" ( demolished). 
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GLEN EIRA HERITAGE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

18 Stanley Street, Elsternwick 
House "St. Elvins" 

Photo: September, 2000 

Existing Designations: 
Heritage Council Register: nil 
National Estate Register: nil 
National Trust Register: nil 

Description: A substantial Arts and Crafts villa with dominant attic storey, transverse 
gable and subordinate axially placed fayade gable having a shingled end treatment with 
Arts and Crafts influenced windows and balustrade, now glazed in. There are 
symmetrically placed lean to dormer windows either side of the front gable end 
balanced by chimneys and ground level window bays either side of the central recessed 
entry. The west end gable end treatment is enriched with half timbering, shingles and a 
subordinate gable end with chimney at the apex in the Arts and Crafts manner. The 

rough cast walls are reiterated in the front fence which has tapered pillars connected by 
railings, original ornamental metal vehicle and pedestrian gates and the house name on 
the main gate pillars. 

Condition: Sound. 
Integrity: High, includes fence and gates and rear garage. Balcony glazed in. 

History: Portion 3 8 bounded on the west by McMillan Street and the north by 
Glen Huntly Road, was purchased at the Crown land sales by T.F. Hamilton. By 1857-

HO140

130



131



132



This number is blank upon approval of Amendment C19. 

HO141

133



GLEN EIRA HERITAGE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

9 Vickery Street, Bentleigh 
House 

Photo: December 1997 

Existing Designations: 
Victorian Heritage Register: nil 
National Estate Register: nil 
National Trust Register: nil 

Description: A representative timber asymmetrical Victorian Style timber villa with 
corner timber posts and cast iron lace bellcast verandah terminated by projecting hip 
roofed wings, the Vickery Street wing having a faceted bay. The roof retains its slates 
and the principal elevations have ashlar boarding. 

Condition: 
Integrity: 

Sound 
High 

History: This part of the City of Glen Eira is within the bounds of Henry 
Dendy's Special Survey bought from the Crown in 1841. The area became known as 
East Brighton. Therefore, when land was subdivided in 1885, it adopted the name "East 

Brighton Estate" despite its close proximity to the Frankston-Dandenong railway line 
and the Bentleigh station. 

In 1892, Edward TA.Wilson, a civil servant, was listed as the owner of vacant land lots 
44 and 45 in Vickery Street, on the north west corner with Morres Street. The NA V 
was 13 pounds. 
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GLEN EIRA HERITAGE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

4 Wahroonga Crescent, Murrumbeena 

House 

Photo: July 1997 

Existing Designations: 
Heritage Council Register: Nil 
National Estate Register: Nil 
National Trust Register: Nil 

Description: A comparatively large Bungalow with dominant terra cotta tiled roof 
extending to form a shady verandah along the street elevation having canted roughcast 
piers on brick bases with connecting dwarf walls. There is a projecting wing with 
timber shingled gable end and rectangular window bay, the west wing consisting of a 
hip roofed double garage with original glazed sliding doors. 

Condition: Sound 
Integrity: High 

History: Wahroonga Street's association with the Boyd family began with the potter 
William 

1 
Merrie Boyd, who owned and occupied a three roomed wood house and sheds 

on lots 9 and 10 on the north side of the road ( now no. 8) in 1915. 

1 The rate books refer to William but it was Arthur Merrie Boyd who first occupied land in Wahroonga 
Crescent. 
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GLEN EIRA HERITAGE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

567 Warrigal Road, Bentleigh East 
Y arra Y arra Golf Clubhouse 

Photo: 6/2001 

Existing Designations: 
Heritage Council Register: ni] 
National Estate Register: nil 
National Trust Register: nil 

Description: An imposing two storeyed American West Coast Mission style Golf 
Club building with dominant central vestibule with portico and engaged tower flanked 
by long gable ended wings, formerly with arcaded treatment to the fa9ade. The formerly 
stuccoed walls have been stripped to reveal the variegated bricks beneath but the cement 
surface remains on the portico which has Corinthian capitals to the pilasters and a 
surmounting terrace accessed by double doors beneath a stuccoed arch off the upper 
level vestibule. The roof tiles are of the Cordovan pattern and the eaves 
characteristically minimal. The two staged tower recalls the form of a campanile and 
has a shallow pyramidal roof, corner pilasters with tiled caps and quatrefoil vents with 
stuccoed margins. The form of the main roof is punctuated by chimneys with Cordovan 
tiled caps in the manner of the Mission style but the balance of the facadee has been 
substantially altered. The original upper level loggia to the east of the entry has been 
built in and defaced and the timber railings reconstructed in metal. To the west, the 
arcaded form of the windows has survived but the railings have also been partly 
reconstructed in metal. There are subordinate extensions to the east and north and some 
of the original arched windows have survived also on this side. 
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GLEN EIRA HERITAGE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

317-319 Alma Road, Caulfield North
1 (St. Olaves" (house 1901)

/, 

Photo: April, 1998 

Existing Designations: 
Victorian Heritage Register: nil 
National Estate Register: nil 
National Trust Register: niJ 

Description: An early Federation period house distinguished by its diagonal axis 
treatment, turned timber posted verandah with fretted and incised spandrels and unusual 
timber panelled frieze and by the projecting wings with round arched windows, drip 
moulds and lead lit upper lights. The prominent picturesque roof is of slate with terra 
cotta cresting, corbelled and rough cast chimney stacks with strapwork and terra cotta 
pots. Brickwork is red with black tuckpointing and the overhanging gable ends are half 
timbered and rough cast. There is an encaustic tiled verandah. 

Condition: 
Integrity: 

Sound 
High 

History: The land on the south side of Alma Road around Cobden Street is 
part of section 196B, which was purchased originally from the Crown by E. and 
J.Fowler. Section 196B consisted of about five acres and was subdivided c.1890.

In 1899, Elizabeth Vines of Prahran owned lot 77 on the south west comer of Alma 
Road and Cobden Street. In that year she sold the land to Robert Henry Bottomley, a 
rate collector. The land measured 70 by 140 feet and had an NAY of 10 pounds. 
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CAULFIELD CONSERVATION STUDY 

Balaclava Road/Hawthorn Road Intersection 
Tramway Crossing 

., 'J' � -��-----: •

:.. -t"' )f,,­

,. 

..:...

Photo: September 1994 

Existing Registrations: 

Historic Buildings Register: 

National Estate Register 
National Trust Register 

Description: 

Nil 

Indicative place 

Nil 

.......... 

"Grand union" tramway junction with crossover in Balaclava Road and overhead wires and 
former M & MTB tram poles carrying overhead. The track is set partly in mass concrete 

and partly in asphalt. Cast metal access covers to point blades are marked "MMTB", 

"M&MTB" and "Hadfields Patent . . . . Shellfield". The tramway shelters are not 

contributory elements. 
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GLEN EIRA HERITAGE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

6 Balaclava Road, St Kilda East 
"Tyringsholm" (house, 1900), "Looranah" (house, 1907), now "Greenfield House". 

Photo: April 1998 

Existing Designations: 
Victorian Heritage Register: nil 
National Estate Register: nil 
National Trust Register: nil 

Description: An imposing two storeyed Italianate villa with encircling reconstructed 
verandah and having a generally symmetrical arrangement to Balaclava Road, but 
oriented originally towards Hotham Street. The lower level verandah has cabled cast 
iron columns with curved spandrels forming arches, the verandah floor having been 
removed (?) The upper level verandah has timber posts and cast iron lace balustrade 
and frieze. The front door facing Hotham Street is round arched and the south facing 
windows, one of which has been defaced, are distinguished by their cabled Corinthian 
colonettes, hood moulds and tri-partite form. 

Condition: 
Integrity: 

Sound 
Medium 

History: When land in East St. Kilda was released for sale, section 163A 
comprising four acres on the north east corner of Balaclava Road and Hotham Street, 
was purchased from the Crown by W.R.Belcher. 

It was part of the area west of Orrong Road that was annexed to the St. Kilda District in 
1859. Most of it was returned to the Shire of Caulfield in 1875. In that year, Philip 
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